WMRLS Executive Board Minutes
Wednesday, December 5, 2007, 2:00 p.m.

WMRLS Headquarters, Whately
Present
Priscilla Perkins, D’ Amour Library, Western New England College
Andrea Taupier, Babson Library, Springfield College
Faith White, lay representative, Sunderland
Sue SanSoucie, Montague Public Library
Beth Wade, MBLC Liaison
Catherine Doyle, Ely Library, Westfield State College
Jan Resnick, WMRLS
Judy Clini, Agawam Public Library
Joan Powers, Undermountain Elementary School
John Ramsay, WMRLS
Megan Lambert, The Eric Carle Museum of Picture Book Art
Susan Peterson, East Longmeadow Library
Lee Fogarty, Springfield City Library
Christine Bergquist, Wilbraham Public Library
Martha Santoro, Franklin Law Library

Absent

Betty Johnson, Colrain

Eric Poulin, Williston Northampton School
Sharon Blanchard,

John O’Connor, CT Valley Historical Museum

1. Call to order (Judy Clini). 2:04 p.m.
Read the WMRLS Mission Statement to start the meeting.
2. Introductions (All): All Board members introduced themselves.

3. Approval of October 11, 2007 minutes (emailed). (ACTION ITEM). Cathy moved to
accept; Joan seconded; approved unanimously.

4. President’s Report (Judy Clini). Review of November 19 Annual Council Meeting.
Judy thanked the Carle for hosting the meeting and then noted the following highlights:

Rob Maier’s and the MBLC’s optimistic outlook on FY09 State budget prospects.
Also addressed the new PR efforts to promote libraries and resources.

Also spoke of authentication efforts for the MBLC website.

Gates Foundation computer grants.

Commended WMRLS’s connectivity efforts.

John gave a report on WMRLS efforts: 312 members, delivery is up.

Plan of service and budget to be addressed at this meeting.

“Together We Thrive” grant is moving along.



On another note, Judi brought up consideration of Executive Board liaisons to WMRLS advisory
committees. She asked that 2008 Board members think about which committees they would like
to serve on in the coming year.

5. Regional Administrator’s Report (John Ramsay) (emailed).

WMRLS fee to CWMARS came up at our last meeting. John sent an email to C/W MARS and
asked that they consider the fact that new member libraries are increasing delivery and that this is
impacting WMRLS. Could this therefore change the fee that WMRLS pays? C/WMARS
responded with a vote that WMRLS would pay the base fee, and they removed collections from
their fess assessments. This is a very positive result, with a $5700 decrease to WMRLS for the
annual cost.

Jan said that this is only a first step based on the email that John sent. They said they needed to
do this before the budget was passed. They also said that this discussion should continue, with
some C/W MARS board members saying that WMRLS should not pay anything.

Mass Answers: Nothing updated yet. John has urged that the Library of Last Recourse should
pick up the ongoing charges from NELINET.

Statistics: Value of WMRLS service for FY07 rose to $9.83 per State tax dollar.

MassCat: hoping MassCat can offer circulation and other features through its system. Have a
negotiation session next week.

Brooke Johnson and John met with Sen. Downing on Nov. 9. They raised concerns that the
regional funding line item in the state budget includes the Library of Last Recourse funding, and
that the LLR got all of the $532k increase, while the Regions received no increase. Sen.
Downing suggested the Greylock Federal Credit Union as a possible funding source for WMRLS
computers for small libraries. John spoke with them today and will forward something in writing.

School library memberships—>5 libraries are no longer in compliance with certification
requirements. WMRLS is considering a newsletter announcement in order to alert membership
that these schools are no longer members, which would also remind members of the
requirements for membership.

Rob Maier asked the Regions to suggest areas that could be bolstered with a budget increase.
One possibility is to re-implement the net lender program that provides an offset to libraries that
lend more materials than they borrow from other libraries. Andrea asked if this was different
from lending through holds. John said this is included.

John then noted that he has received a report from the statewide delivery study. Some
suggestions are offered along with the general advice that the west should deal with the west but
should explore the option of more contracting. Will talk with resource sharing and finance
committees to discuss how to grow delivery in a sustainable manner.

The WMRLS delivery system has never crashed.

Even though the vans are big, WMRLS does sorting on the vehicles, which takes up space.



John also reported on his upcoming trip to Denver with Wes Hamilton, December 11-13, ALA.
6. MBLC Liaison Report (Beth Wade) (emailed).

The MBLC is receiving letters of intent for LSTA grants, postmark date is December 3.

The optimism expressed at the Annual Meeting has not changed at the MBLC.

John noted that the readers’ advisory grant is still going strong.

Lee wondered when Gates funding for computers will be announced. Beth said that this was on
its way. John noted that matching funds might be necessary during this round.

7. Committee Reports:
e Continuing Education (Judy).

Scheduling lots of programs planned. Judy raised the Committee’s concerns about people
signing up for programs and then not showing up.

e Finance (Sue): Recommended 2™ revision of FY08 budget (ACTION ITEM).

Sue directed the Board’s attention to:

An additional $10,000 from library of last recourse
A $63,000 one time increase to the salary line

For a total of approximately $73k additional

Drivers’ compensation came up in order to give drivers at the entry salary step a raise for
their terms of service. This would involve a 4% increase in pay as a step. This would be an
ongoing change, not a bonus. This is different from the other situation, which was a one time

payment. The WMRLS staff meeting was unanimously behind an increase for these drivers.

Andrea—will there be a plan in the wings to allocate budget increases into pay as a usual
cost of living raise?

Joan said there would be a meeting next month and John said that the 4% increase would
likely be a recommendation if the increases come through.

Health care, Social Security, electricity, fuel, gas, etc. all represent rising costs to the
organization.

Increased funding for CE programs

John noted that there are two figures that may impact the budget slightly, but he thought that
even with these potential future adjustments the Board could still take action:

Line C4 $6,000 printing and advertising—just in case WMRLS has to cover summer reading
program materials printing and advertising. If Waste Management steps forward to fund this,



then this money can be reallocated from this line; it could be diverted to line B1, but this
might mean that the computers would be subject to filtering. So, we can vote this with the
possibility that there could be some small funding shifts.

Andrea asked if this would necessitate a third revision?

John said no, because we could vote in the budget while giving some latitude for this
possible change.

Martha asked about line E11, the strategic planning line.

Sue responded that we decided not to enter a strategic planning process in order to save
funds.

Priscilla asked if there is latitude for expenses such as rising gasoline prices.

John noted that non-contractual and personnel expenses can have money moved around—
i.e., the price of gasoline, other operating expenses.

Cathy moved to accept the budget with the possibility that funds from line C4, printing and
advertising, may be diverted to other operating expenses as discussed.

Seconded by Joan

Sue said that before she could vote to support the budget she wanted to go on record with
concern that WMRLS staff have not received raises and we need to keep this in mind and
make an effort to address this. She also noted that the rising price of delivery is very
concerning.

Motion passed unanimously.

e Personnel (Joan). Wording on Pension Plan wording for new employees. (ACTION
ITEM).

Working on the staff handbook with input from attorneys and from Howard from the Franklin
Law Library. The Committee feels it is at the point where they need to send everything back to
the attorney to get the final version.

John noted that we have funds set aside in legal fees to cover this.

Martha wondered what the ballpark fee would be and if we should shop this around.

Joan noted that this is the attorney who has been overseeing the work all along, and this would
be the final pass.

Joan made a motion to send the staff handbook back to the attorney for final revision and to also
have the attorney review the pension plan wording. Sue SanSoucie seconded the motion.
Passed unanimously.



e Resource Sharing (Andrea/Judy)

Andrea said that the committee would like to have concrete recommendations for addressing
the delivery demands. Although it is difficult to address cutbacks, we must do so.

Jan passed out an explanation for a recommendation on barcode placement, which will
facilitate delivery services.

John said that this is a step toward eventual automated sorting for delivery, which would
have great time-saving potential.

Lee made the motion: in preparation for an eventual delivery solution, the WMRLS Executive
Board urges member libraries to place barcode circulation labels on the front of all new
materials, in the upper left corner, parallel to the top of the item.

Cathy seconded.

Passed unanimously.

e Small Libraries (Betty): Update on hiring process for coordinator of “Together We
Thrive” LSTA Small Library Grant (John, in Betty’s absence).

John noted that they advertised for the Coordinator position for the Together We Thrive Grant to
oversee circuit riders. Have received 8 applications. Interviewed 5 candidates. And are now

trying to sort out who seems to be the best person for the job.

Two year grant with a mid-point review. Initial steps will focus on helping libraries weed their
collections.

e Reference (Cathy)

Has not met in a bit, but will have a round table at UMASS in January.

The reference committee suggested that not circulating DVD’s might be a way to cut back on
the skyrocketing delivery costs. Metrowest (Minuteman network) has a precedent for this in

order to cut down on volume. These materials are also more fragile.

Martha wondered if this was a question of volume or whether the materials were being
damaged.

Beth said that in Metrowest the the concern was mainly volume.

John said that AV materials comprise about 40% of delivery volume statewide.
e Public Relations. No report.

e Bylaws (Martha). No report.

e Nominating (Megan): Approval of Christine Bergquist as Clerk. (ACTION)



Megan made a motion to name Christine Bergquist as Clerk. Seconded by Joan. Passed
unanimously

Megan announced that Eric Poulin has accepted a new job and will no longer be a school
representative. Therefore, unless the board decides to welcome an additional academic
librarian, he would not serve as a voting member. This also leaves open his position as
President Elect.

The Board therefore needs to designate a new person to serve as Vice President / President
Elect.

We also need a school librarian to fill Eric’s position as school librarian.
Lee, Joan, and Martha all suggested that we agree to have a larger Board and ask Eric if he is sill
willing to serve as President Elect and then we can simply find a school librarian. Megan agreed

to try to find another school librarian this month, and to follow up with Eric.

8. Unfinished Business: Approval of latest version of the Draft policy on sponsorships
(emailed). (ACTION ITEM).

John said to pass on this for now, as this board has already reviewed it twice.

9. New Business & Announcements
Dates, times and locations of 2008 Executive Board meetings (ACTION ITEM).

Meetings will be held at 2:00 at the WMRLS headquarters. The Board agreed to the following
dates:

Wednesday January 9

Tuesday February 12

Wednesday March 12

Tuesday April 8

Thursday May 15

Tuesday June 10

Tuesday September 9

Thursday October 16

Thursday November 13 10:00 a.m. Annual Meeting (location to be determined)
Tuesday December 9 joint transitional meeting

10. Adjournment. 3:57

Submitted by Megan Lambert



